
 www.earpdc.org  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The next meeting of the Calhoun Area MPO is scheduled for 10:00 am Thursday, April 15, 2021.  
 
Due to precautions and social distancing protocol with COVID-19, this meeting will be held via conference call. 
Join from your computer, tablet or smartphone at https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/132611237. 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679 Access Code: 132-611-237 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting 
starts: https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/132611237 
 
Monthly newsletters can be found at http://www.earpdc.org/pages/?pageID=90.  
If there is an issue or project which you would like to add to the agenda, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Please email Libby at elizabeth.messick@earpdc.org to receive the meeting packet information.  
 
Please make every effort to attend. 

 

To: Calhoun Area MPO Members 
From: Elizabeth (Libby) Messick, Senior Planner 
Date:  April 7, 2021 
Re: MPO Meeting – Thursday, April 15, 2021 Conference Call 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/132611237
tel:+18668994679,,132611237
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/132611237
http://www.earpdc.org/pages/?pageID=90
mailto:elizabeth.messick@earpdc.org


 AGENDA 
for the  

Calhoun Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)  
April 15, 2021 

10:00 a.m. 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Verification of Quorum 
 

III. Recognition of Guests 
 
IV. Old Business 

A. Review and approve minutes from March 18, 2021 
B. TBA 

 
V. New Business 

A. Review FY 20-23 TIP Spreadsheet and Administrative Modifications  
B. Resolution 821: FY change to 10 projects 
C. CAC Appointments 
D. Safety Observations 
E. TBA 

 
VI. Other Business 

A. Status Report on Other Local Projects from ALDOT 
B. Report on Urban Fixed Route and ADA Handicapped Transit Systems 
C. Comments or Issues from Member Jurisdictions or Attendees 
D. TBA 

 
VII. Next MPO Meeting – Thursday, May 20, 2021 

 
VIII. Adjourn 



1 

MINUTES 
Calhoun Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

Thursday, March 18, 2021 
10:00 a.m. 

 
Those attending: 
 
Mayor Alberta McCrory   Town of Hobson City 
Fred Denney     City of Oxford 
Jana Monday     CDG Engineers 
Jay Jenkins, Vice Chairman   City of Anniston 
Joe Meads     Sain and Associates 
Jules Moss     MDA 
Katie Herzberg    Sterling 
Lian Li      FHWA 
Libby Messick     EARPDC/MPO 
Lori Corley     EARPDC/Executive Director 
Michael Bergh     ALDOT East Central Region 
Michael Hosh     Calhoun County 
Rodney McCain    Calhoun County 
Shane Brown     ALDOT East Central Region 
Shane Christian    EARPDC/ACTS 
Toby Bennington    City of Anniston 
Mayor Wayne Willis    City of Weaver 
 
After roll call was taken and it was determined that a quorum was present, Ms. Messick called 
the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m.  
 
Ms. Herzberg from Sterling was introduced as a new guest.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
The minutes of the February 18, 2021 meeting were approved on a motion made by Mr. Toby 
Bennington and seconded by Jay Jenkins. Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Ms. Mesick called for the Review of FY 20-23 TIP Spreadsheet and Administrative Modifications. 
Ms. Messick gave the members a copy of the current TIP. Ms. Messick explained that there were 
no administrative modifications for the month. She further explained the amounts allocated for FY 
21-23 had increased slightly due to state gas tax.  
 
Ms. Messick then called for discussion of Resolution No. 817. She explained this resolution was 
to amend the 2019 Bike-Ped plan to add an Appendix D that included Trail Economic Impacts for 



2 

Calhoun County. She further explained the updated SCORP also included an economic impact, so 
this would better reflect that plan. Mr. Toby Bennington further explained the current and ongoing 
work by Jennifer Green and JSU’s CEDBR. A motion was made by Mr. Fred Denney to approve 
this amendment with Resolution No. 817, which was seconded by Mayor McCrory. Motion 
carried. 
 
Ms. Messick next called for discussion of Resolution No. 818. She explained this resolution was 
to amend the current FY UPWP to allocate $160,680 in remaining funds from the previous year’s 
UPWP. She further explained $27,887 would be allocated to Task 6.3 which was for Anniston’s 
Bike-Ped plan update and feasibility studies for CLT/Coldwater connectivity. The remaining funds 
would be placed in Task 6.2 as a catch all for any special studies that the municipalities may want 
to have done as well as to save for large plans such as the LRTP. A motion was made by Mr. Toby 
Bennington to approve this amendment with Resolution No. 818, which was seconded by Mr. Jay 
Jenkins. Motion carried. 
 
Ms. Messick then called for discussion of Resolution No. 819. She explained this resolution was 
to support a letter of disagreement with the recommendation to the OMB to make changes to the 
2010 standards for delineating Metro and Micropolitan Statistical Areas. Ms. Messick included 
the letter to be submitted during the comment period and noted the major change was to denote 
urban areas as those with a population of 100,000 instead of the current 50,000. This had the 
potential to affect 7 out of 12 MPOs in Alabama. A motion was made by Mr. Fred Denney to 
approve the letter with Resolution No. 819, which was seconded by Mr. Toby Bennington. Motion 
carried. 
 
Ms. Messick then called for discussion of Resolution No. 820. She explained this resolution was 
to certify the FY 21 ADA Para-transit Implementation Plan Update which is a yearly update 
performed by ACTS. Mr. Shane Christian spoke briefly about what is included in the plan and any 
changes that occurred between last and this fiscal year. A motion was made by Mr. Toby 
Bennington to approve the certification with Resolution No. 820, which was seconded by Mr. Jay 
Jenkins. Motion carried. 
 
Ms. Messick next called for discussion CAC Appointments. She explained that there was a list of 
the members in the agenda packet to review. The City of Anniston still needs 7 appointments, 2 
for the City of Jacksonville, 7 for the City of Oxford, and 1 for the City of Weaver.  
 
Next, Ms. Messick continued with New Business by calling for discussion of Safety Observations. 
Ms. Messick explained that there was a handout in the agenda packet with the list of concerns from 
the CAC that had been discussed at previous meetings for review. The only update was the City 
of Anniston had requested a traffic study by ALDOT for item number 21 at the intersection of 10th 
and South Quintard. There were no further updates.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 



3 

Ms. Messick called for the status report on other local projects from ALDOT East Central Division. 
Mr. Shane Brown reported the bridge painting projects over railroads in Calhoun and other 
counties were accepted for maintenance; AL-144 resurfacing and safety widening is nearing 
completion and is awaiting perm stripe; US-431 access management has turn lanes and U-turn 
bulbs complete with median cross over removal and turn lane construction in progress; Baltzell 
and Lenlock materials have been approved and work should begin in 2-4 weeks; and Church Street 
is awaiting production of retaining wall material but should begin work May 3.  
 
Ms. Messick called for the Report on Urban Fixed Route and ADA Handicapped Transit Systems. 
She gave the report for the Fixed-Route ridership for the month of February, which was provided 
in the agenda packet for review. Ms. Messick further explained the ADA Paratransit Ridership for 
December; Anniston had 563 (decrease) one-way trips, Jacksonville had 106 (increase) one-way 
trips, 56 trips for Weaver (decrease), and Oxford had 126 (decrease) one-way trips. For the 
Urbanized area 82 (decrease) one-way trips and 98 (increase) one-way trips for the Rural area. 
Fixed-route ridership had a total of 4,773 (decrease) riders for the month of February.  
 
Finally, Ms. Messick called for comments or issues from member jurisdictions or attendees. There 
were none.   
 
Next meeting of the MPO will be Thursday, April 15, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.  
 
There being no further business, Mr. Toby Bennington motioned to adjourn. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Jay Jenkins. Motion carried. Ms. Messick adjourned the meeting at 10:35 a.m.  
 



April 2021 Administrative Modifications 
 

That created changes on the TIP spreadsheet:  
 

1. #52 CN Whites Gap Rd and Whites Gap Rd SE Resurfacing (100070226) 
Previous Engineering Estimate: $1,285,326 
Low bid amount: $891,061.99 
-Decrease of $394,264.  
 

2. #6 CN McIntosh Rd. Improvements and Realignment (100054926) 
Previous Allocated Amount: $1,358,096 
Total with Overrun: $1,443,985.46 
-Increase of $85,889.46 which is less than 20% of previous amount, no resolution needed.  
 

That did not create changes on the TIP spreadsheet: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 















CAC Appointments   

  

Anniston 7
Jacksonville 2
Calhoun County 0
Oxford 7
Weaver 1
Anniston Army Depot 0
Hobson City 0

Vacancies

Ed Kimbrough Anniston
Joan McKinney Anniston
Miller Parnell, Vice ChairmanAnniston
Dr. Mike Kimberly Anniston
Phillip Keith Anniston
James Robert Jenkins Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Vacant Anniston
Nelson Coleman Jacksonville
David Thompson Jacksonville
Richard Lindblom Jacksonville
TL Thompson Jacksonville
Jamie 'Red' Etheredge Jacksonville
Vacant Jacksonville
Vacant Jacksonville
Rodney Cox Calhoun County
George Salmon Calhoun County
Theodore Smart Calhoun County
Edward Sturkie, Sr. Calhoun County
Dennis Reaves, Chairman Calhoun County
Tim Huddleston Calhoun County
Reuben Johnson Calhoun County
Chris Gann Calhoun County
Dr. David West Calhoun County
Reggie Stewart Calhoun County
Darryl League Oxford
Buford Parker Oxford
Lem Burrell Oxford
Lavoy Jordan Oxford
Bruce Britton Oxford
Terry Parker Oxford
Vacant Oxford
Vacant Oxford
Vacant Oxford
Vacant Oxford
Vacant Oxford
Vacant Oxford
Vacant Oxford/Trucking Rep
Frank Thomas Weaver
Richard "Rick" Robins Weaver 
Vacant
Mike Matthews Anniston Army Depot
Dustin Gillihan Anniston Army Depot
Kevin Ashley, P.E. Anniston Army Depot
Joe L. Cunningham Hobson City
Regina Jones Hobson City
Johnnie C. Phillips, Jr. Hobson City







CURRENT CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

 

PROJECT NO.   DESCRIPTION      STATUS    
       

STPAA-HSIP-0144(502)               AL 144 Resurfacing and Safety Widening   Awaiting Perm. Stripe   

                       from St. Clair County line to US 431      Scheduled to Perm. Stripe 

  Week of April 12, 2021  
     
    

NH-FMGR-0001(613)  US- 431 Access Management                      Turn lanes and U-turn Bulbs   

    from MP. 233.238 to 240.049        complete through upper  

          binder along north and 

          southbound outside.  

                                                                                                                                                 Median crossover removal and 

                                                                                                                                                 turn lanes construction in      

                                                                                                                                                 progress. 

 

STPOA-0021(516)  SR-21 Signal Upgrade at Baltzell       Signs Installed. Work should  

                                                           Gate Rd. and Lenlock Lane                                       should begin soon. 

 

                                                                                                                                                  

STPOA-0815(261)  Church Ave. resurfacing and                                     Awaiting production of 

                                                          Traffic stripe from SR-21 to 11th. St.                       Retaining Wall material.                                                       

                                                           Jacksonville                                                                  Scheduled to begin work   

                                                                                                                                                  May 3, 2021. 



FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21
Oct 11,357    9,851      9,011 9,560 9,993      8,871      5,541
Nov 9,644      9,077      9,481 9,225 8,504      7,665      5,425
Dec 10,621    9,749      9,459 8,205 8,082      7,596      5,266
Jan 10,446    8,957      8,019 7,510 8,239      7,614      5,177
Feb 8,826      9,573      8,462 8,960 7,800      7,262      4,773
Mar 9,467      9,965      9,707 9,493 8,979      7,185      5,512
Apr 9,872      9,338      8,240 8,942 9,045      4,285      
May 9,548      8,838      9,900 9,502 8,774      5,141      
Jun 10,449    9,745      9,977 9,905 7,993      5,852      
Jul 10,535    9,164      8,971 8,820 8,626      6,160      
Aug 10,275    10,241    10,511 10,617 9,314      6,111      
Sep 9,688      9,543      9,280 8,607 7,868      5,923      

Fixed-Route Ridership

Fixed Route Ridership



2020 Avg./Mo. 788 155 64 160 118 154

ADA Paratransit Ridership

Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 Anniston Jacksonville Weaver Oxford Section 5307 

CC Urban
Section 5311    

CC Rural
October 663 158 66 188 139 155

November 642 138 67 180 97 156
December 666 105 44 148 100 125
January 646 102 61 135 109 76
February 563 106 56 126 82 98

March 665 132 104 157 90 138
April
May
June
July

August
September

3845 741 398 934 617 748

2021 Avg./Mo. 641 124 66 156 103 125

ADA Paratransit Ridership










